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STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 14-2939R
TO BE OPENED: 3/18/2014
TITLE: Media Campaign for Chronic Disease Prevention
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP. In order to clarify any confusion with the questions and answers below, this is the first year for the entire Chronic Disease Bureau and the previous effort was Tobacco Prevention only. 

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Rhonda R. Grandy
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP14-2939R, Media Campaign for Chronic Disease

	1. 
	
	
	Q.
Is this a new project/contract?
A.
Yes. July 1, 2014 is the intended start date of a new contract.  

	2. 
	
	
	Q.
Who is the current agency of record?
A.
The Arnold Agency

	3. 
	
	
	Q.
Is this RFP state mandated? (i.e. 7 year review)
A.
This contract is for a one year term with the option to renew in one-year intervals at the option of the State. 

	4. 
	
	
	Q.
Who is on the selection committee?
A.
The Healthy Lifestyles Section Supervisor and the Arthritis Program Manager. 

	5. 
	
	
	Q.
What other agencies have submitted questions?
A.
The Wendt Agency, GMMB, Partnerscreative, Quinn Thomas, The Arnold Agency.

	6. 
	11-12
	3.0.2
	Q.
Are there creative materials for CDPHPB? (print ads, TV spots, radio spots, banner ads, etc) Could we see them?

A.
Yes.  There are currently CDPHPB materials and many of them can be viewed via the Chronic Disease Programs websites.

	7. 
	11-12
	3.0.2
	Q.
Does the CDPHPB intend to use national creative? If so, is that available for review?

A.
National materials have been used by several of the programs within the bureau, and may be used in the future depending on availability.  These can be viewed online on National Partner websites.

	8. 
	11-12
	3.0.2
	Q.
Can we access the current marketing plan? Or the most recent year’s marketing plan?

A.
Yes. More information can be found at the following website:
http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/azindex.shtml


	9. 
	12
	3.0.3
	Q.
Do you have any current research? Re: minorities and/or youth chronic disease?

A.
See answer #8. 

	10. 
	12
	3.0.3
	Q.
Do you feel past campaigns have been successful, why or why not?

A.
Yes.  We have had many successful campaigns that have been evaluated and proven successful.

	11. 
	11-12
	3
	Q.
Do you expect two different creative campaigns—one aimed at youth and one for adults?
A.
The campaigns produced will depend on the needs of each program and funding available.

	12. 
	16-17
	5
	Q.
Is the media buy included in the budget listed?

A.
Yes.  All expenses are included in the budget.

	13. 
	16-17
	5
	Q.
Is there a separate budget for printing/production?

A.
Printing is done through print services at the state level and comes out of a different budget.  Production of materials is included in the media budget listed.

	14. 
	16-17
	5
	Q.
Do you have a rough idea of how much weight is given to paid versus earned media activities?

A.
No.  It depends on the current years marketing plan.

	15. 
	18-19
	6
	Q.
Is preference given to a local firm? How is a local firm defined?

A.
No. For more information, go to the following link: http://gsd.mt.gov/ProcurementServices/preferences.mcpx.

	16. 
	18-19
	6
	Q.
Is there an incumbent for this work?

A.
Yes. The Arnold Agency. 

	17. 
	11
	3.0.1
	Q.
Does the State have existing creative assets they want us to use? Or does the State anticipate all new creative?

A.
The State has existing creative they will use, and will also expect new creative.  

	18. 
	11
	3.0.1
	Q.
Does the State want separate campaigns for each chronic disease mentioned (i.e. arthritis, asthma control, etc.)? Or is there a priority listing of what should be promoted in FY15?
A.
This will vary depending on the needs of the programs.

	19. 
	11
	3.0.2
	Q.
Does the State have any research it uses for culturally appropriate advertising efforts mentioned in the fourth bullet of that section?
A.
The Chronic Disease Bureau focuses on evidence based interventions which include culturally appropriate media.

	20. 
	11
	3.0.2
	Q.
In the last bullet, the State mentions intermediate outcome evaluation as an element to a successful campaign, does this mean the Offeror should plan for a mid campaign evaluation review process? Is this something the State has done in the past with prior campaigns, and if so, can we see those intermediate outcome evaluation reports or findings? Even if the report was for another type campaign, it would be helpful to see the methodology and research tools that were used. 
A.
The State is continually tracking the effectiveness of current media campaigns through state data sources that are available and surveys when necessary.  No, the research tools are not available for viewing.  

	21. 
	12
	3.0.3
	Q.
What are specifically your targeted populations? Youth? What age range? Adults what age range? Any others? A description of these targeted populations would be helpful.
A.
The targeted populations vary among the different chronic disease programs.  All of this information is available via the program’s websites.  

	22. 
	12
	3.0.3
	Q.
There was a brief mention re: earned media. Does the State see PR as an integral component of the marketing strategy? And if so, how would the State like to see it discussed in the RFP? 
A.
Yes.  It should be integrated throughout the proposal.  

	23. 
	12
	3.0.3
	Q.
Does the State see social media channels like Facebook as part of the strategy? Would the State handle this in-house? 
A.
Yes.  The State currently has a Facebook page for the Department of Public Health and Human Services with each program contributing to the content.  

	24. 
	14
	4.1.2.5
	Q.
Would the State consider work for drunk driving prevention and seat belt use a public health issue?  Would the State consider work for sexual assault awareness as a public health issue?
A.
Yes.  The Chronic Disease Bureau includes the Injury Prevention Program, but not sexual assault.



	25. 
	15
	4.1.3.1
	Q.
What does the State mean by the Offeror must clearly describe their firm's plan for staffing and assuring quality performance of their work under this RFP?
A.
See Sections 4.1.3.1 - 4.1.3.6.

	26. 
	16
	5.0
	Q.
At least 50% of budget must be allocated for media placement, is that 50% of whatever budget is in 5.1? There is a big disparity between 50% of $800,000 and 50% of $1.5 million.

A.
Yes.  The final budget for media placement will depend on funds available and media needs required for each program.

	27. 
	16
	5.1
	Q.
The State has a very specific billable table in 5.1. based on hourly rates. How would the State evaluate cost proposals not based on hourly rates?
A.
The State is seeking an hourly rate. Offeror must propose an hourly rate. 

	28. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Does the State have any applicable past research that will be made available during the RFP process?

A.
No.

	29. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Is there currently an agency of record that has managed this contract (or a similar contract) in previous fiscal years? And if so, who is the agency of record?
A.
The Arnold Agency.

	30. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
What contractor(s) has DPHHS used for these services over the past two years? Or is this a new effort?
A.
See answer to question #2.

	31. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Who is on the selection committee for this RFP?

A.
See answer to question #4. 

	32. 
	12.
	3.0.3
	Q.
Does the State have examples of work it feels does a good job of achieving the goals outlined in 3.0.3?
A.
Examples of current media campaigns can be viewed via the Chronic Disease Bureau’s programs websites at the following link: http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/azindex.shtml


	33. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Does the State anticipate pursuing more "creative campaigns" with a higher budget (1.5 million) or simply increasing when, where and how the campaigns run?
A.
Current materials will be used along with new creative when necessary.

	34. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Is the intent that this contract will be extended beyond one year if the selected contractor meets the state's expectations?
A.
See Section 1.1 of the RFP.  

	35. 
	16
	5.0
	Q.
How will the budget and/or marketing calendar be affected by federal funding mandates?
A.
The budget contains both state and federal funds and both vary depending on current funds available.  

	36. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
What other potential contractors have asked questions?

A.
See answer to question #5.

	37. 
	
	Misc.
	Q.
Is this an existing contract? If so, is their one agency that handles it or is it currently being handled by several agencies? If so, who are those agencies or agency? 

A.
Previously several media agencies have provided services to different chronic disease programs.

	38. 
	5
	1.2
	Q.
Single Point of Contact – As the current contractor for some DPHHS programs, we would like to clarify that communication with state staff regarding any current contract/projects is allowed; it is only communication regarding this RFP #14-2939R that is prohibited (except at the direction of Rhonda R. Grandy), correct?

A.
Correct. 

	39. 
	6
	1.4.6
	Q.
Page Limit – Just to clarify, does the page limit requirement mean 75 total pages of information (37-38 pages front-and-back, for example) or does it mean 150 pages of information (75 pages front-and-back text, for example)?

A.
75 pages total. 

	40. 
	6
	1.4.6
	Q.
Page Limit – Does the cover sheet, table of contents, tabs, provided forms, addenda, etc. count toward the 75-page limit?

A.
No. The offeror may respond with a total of 75 pages, excluding the items listed above. 

	41. 
	6
	1.4.4
	Q.
Offeror’s Signature – The RFP states the Offeror shall provide proof of authority of the person signing the RFP upon the State’s request.  Is there a specific type of proof(s) of authority that the State will accept that should be included with the RFP submittal?

A.
Documentation may be requested at the State’s request but it does not need to be submitted with the offeror’s response. 

	42. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Will the State provide the names of the companies who submitted questions in regards to this RFP (#14-2939R) in the State’s response/answers posted via addendum?

A.
See answer to questions #5.

	43. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Who are the current and/or any previous contractors that have supported the State/CDPHP in the services outlined in this RFP? What is the status of the relationship with any current or previous contractor(s) as it relates to this contract term and scope?

A.
The Arnold Agency. They are currently under contract. 

	44. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Is this RFP part of a new contract review, or is it part of a renewal process for of an existing contract with another agency?

A.
This is a new contract.

	45. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Are bidders outside of the State of Montana eligible for consideration of award? Will out of state bidders be given equal weight in the scoring and evaluation of proposals as in-state bidders?

A.
Yes.  Offerors may submit a response from outside the State of Montana and will be given equal weight in the scoring process. 

	46. 
	6
	1.4.6 

(Page Limit)
	Q.
Can you justify why bidders need to use Arial font in their written proposals? This seems overly prescriptive for the review and consideration of creative services. Can you explain why this is a necessary requirement?

A.
This requirement will be removed but the offeror must still remain within the 75 page limit regardless of font type used.  

	47. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Who are the members of the proposal evaluation committee? What are their roles in the support and/or guidance of the scope of work outlined in the RFP?

A.
See answer to questions #4 and #31. 

	48. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Where will the funding for the work outlined in the RFP come from? Are there any specific out-of-state sources (ie, federal grants, tobacco settlement dollars, etc) that are being used for this work? If so, what are the requirements of that funding source that may restrict a contractor to performing certain duties under this contract?

A.
The funding will come from both state and federal grants.  Restricted use of funds are listed in 5.4.1.

	49. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
How is success with these campaign being measured? What is the most important metric to determining the overall goal of this contractor’s work?

A.
The State is continually tracking the effectiveness of current media campaigns through state data sources that are available and surveys when necessary.  The most important metric varies depending on the expectations of the campaign.

	50. 
	11
	3.0.1 Background
	Q.
Which of these chronic disease programs listed are considered priorities for the State/CDPHP? How will the budget for this scope of work be allocated to supporting specific program areas? Which program is considered most important by project staff?

A.
All programs are considered a priority for the Chronic Disease Bureau.  The budget will be allocated depending on each programs available funds.
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